## MINCO GOLD CORPORATION MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR THE THREE MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

This Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of Minco Gold Corporation ("we", "our", "us", "Minco Gold" or the "Company") has been prepared on the basis of available information up to May 12, 2017, should be read in conjunction with the unaudited condensed interim financial statements and notes thereto prepared by management for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and the audited financial statements and notes thereto for the most recent years ended December 31, 2016. The Company's condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") applicable to the preparation of interim financial statements, including IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting. Except as noted, all financial amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars. All references to "\$" and "dollars" are to Canadian dollars, all references to "US\$" are United States dollars and all references to "RMB" are Chinese Renminbi.

Additional information, including the Company's audited financial statements, the MD&A, and the annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2016, is available under the Company's profile on SEDAR at <u>www.sedar.com</u>. The Company's audit committee reviews the condensed interim financial statements and the MD&A, and recommends approval to the Company's board of directors.

Minco Gold was incorporated in 1982 under the laws of British Columbia, Canada as Caprock Energy Ltd. The Company changed its name to Minco Gold in 2007. The Company's common shares are currently traded on the TSX Venture exchange (TSX-V) under the symbol MMM and on the OTC Market in the USA (OTCQX) under the symbol MGHCF. The Company's shares were previously traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") under the symbol "MMM" and the NYSE MKT under the symbol "MGH" during the year ended December 31, 2016.

As at the date of this MD&A, the Company had 50,733,381 common shares and 5,998,334 stock options outstanding, for a total of 56,731,715 common shares outstanding, on a fully diluted basis.

## **Table of Contents**

- 1. Highlights for the period
- 2. Investments at fair value and Mineral Properties update
- 3. Results of Operations
- 4. Summary of Quarterly Results
- 5. Liquidity and Capital Resource
- 6. Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
- 7. Transactions with Related Parties
- 8. Critical Accounting Estimates
- 9. Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Applied
- 10. Financial Instruments
- 11. Risk Factors and Uncertainties
- 12. Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Controls over Financing Reporting
- 13. Cautionary Statement on Forward Looking Information

# 1. Highlights for the period

# Change of business and change of listing stock exchange

On November 11, 2016, the Company submitted an application to the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") for delisting from the TSX and listing on the TSX Venture Exchange ("TSX-V") as a Tier 1 Investment Issuer. At the same time, the Company also has changed its business from an exploration company into an investment issuer engaged in investing in privately and publicly traded companies ("COB"). Types of investments include common shares, preferred shares, warrants, royalties, convertible debentures, bridge loans, and other investment vehicles selected to create value and return for the shareholders.

The Company has received a conditional approval from the TSX-V on February 16, 2017 and a final approval on April 20, 2017. Effective Monday, May 1, 2017, the Company's common shares commenced trading on the TSX-V under the symbol "MMM", and the Company's common shares were delisted from the TSX effective Friday, April 28, 2017.

In conjunction with the new business strategy, the Company has begun the process of divesting all remaining mineral property interests held in China. See discussion in the section 2 of this MD&A.

More details of the Company's COB are disclosed in the filing statement filed in November 2016 on <u>www.sedar.com</u> under the Company's profile. The filing statement includes an investment policy, which has been adopted by the Company to govern its investment activities. The nature and timing of the Company's investments will depend, in part, on available capital at any particular time and the investment opportunities identified and available to the Company.

During three months ended March 31, 2017, the Company filed a Form 25 ("Notification of Removal from Listing and/or Registration under Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934") with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") to initiate a voluntary delisting from the NYSE Mkt of the Company's outstanding common shares and the deregistration of the common shares under Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). The Company decided to delist its common shares in light of its proposed change of business focus from mineral exploration to an investment company strategy. The Company's common shares will continue to be registered with the SEC under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act and, therefore, the Company will continue to be subject to the SEC reporting requirements pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Exchange Act until such time as all applicable deregistration conditions are satisfied. The delisting was in effect after the close of the market on January 27, 2017 and the Company's common shares has begun quotation on OTC market of the USA ("OTCQX") under the symbol MGHCF commencing January 31, 2017.

### Appointment of new director

The Company appointed Mr. Michael Durose, a Professional Geologist (P.Geo.) registered in the Province of Ontario, to the Company's Board of Directors effective May 3, 2017

#### Stock options granted

During the three months ended March 31, 2017, the Company granted stock options to employees, consultants and directors for the purchase of 2,000,000 common shares at an exercise price of \$0.24 per common share. These options vest over an 18 month period from the issue date and will expire on February 6, 2022 if unexercised

# 2. Investments at Fair Value and Mineral Property Update

## 2.1 Investments at Fair Value

## Investments held on March 31, 2017

The continuity of the Company's investments at fair value is as follows:

	December 31,		Fair value	March 31,
	2016	Addition	adjustment	2017
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Current:				
Investment in common shares:				
- Barkerville Gold Mines Ltd.(i)	-	84,233	41,767	126,000
- Minco Silver Corporation (ii)	11,770,000		2,310,000	14,080,000
- Hudson Resources Inc. (iii)	-	600,000	985,714	1,585,714
Investment in share purchase warrants:				
- Hudson Resources Inc. (iii)	-	150,000	350,000	500,000
Total current	11,770,000	834,233	3,687,481	16,291,714
Non-current investment in security units:				
- EI Olivar Imperial SAC (iv)	537,860	-	(4,648)	533,212

(i) The Company acquired 200,000 common shares of Barkerville Gold Mines Ltd., a Canadian public company, from open market for a consideration of \$84,233

(ii) The Company owned 11,000,000 common shares of Minco Silver Corporation ("Minco Silver"), a Canadian public company as at March 31, 2017 (18.18% ownership) and December 31, 2016 (18.26% ownership). The Company applied the equity method to account for this investment until November 11, 2016 when the Company started to account for this investment at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").

(iii) The Company acquired 2,142,857 security units of Hudson Resources Inc., a Canadian public company for a consideration of \$750,000. Each unit is comprised of one common share and one-half of a purchase warrant. Each full purchase warrant is exercisable into one common share at \$0.50 per share until February 1, 2020. The consideration was allocated to common shares (\$600,000) and warrants (\$150,000) based on their relative fair value at the acquisition date.

(iv) El Olivar Imperial SAC ("El Olivar") is a privately held Peruvian corporation. The Company owns 400,000 units of the Company as at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. Each Unit consists of one Class A voting share and 1.5 Class A share purchase warrants, with each full warrant entitling the holder to purchase one additional Class A voting share for a period of six months from closing at a price of US\$1.00 per share. Minco Gold shall receive an annual cash dividend in U.S. dollars equal to 6% of the invested amount, calculated from the initial date of investment and payable starting on the date that is 18 months from the closing date.

The Class A Shares may be converted at any time into common shares of El Olivar at the option of the holder. After a period of 10 years from the commencement of commercial production, Class A shareholders will have the option to either convert their Class A Shares to common shares or redeem the shares for cash at face value. The conversion rate will initially be 1:1, subject to customary adjustments.

El Olivar's principal asset is the wholly owned Planta Sol de Oro gold tailings and processing project located near Nasca, Peru, 445 kilometers south of Lima.

One director of the Company is also a director, an officer, and a controlling shareholder of EI Olivar.

There was no disposition during three months ended March 31, 2017.

The Company considers the closing price of public company's common share at each reporting date as their fair values.

The Company apply Black-Scholes option pricing model to value public company's share purchase warrants held by the Company at the reporting date.

Due to the short time period between the acquisition and the period ended March 31, 2017, the acquisition cost of US400, 000 of EI Olivar Imperial SAC's security units approximated its fair value except for the changes caused by change in the foreign exchange of the US dollars.

Investment / disposition after March 31, 2017:

All the 200,000 common shares of Barkerville Gold Mines Ltd were disposed with profits.

The Company bought 76,000 common shares of Roxgold Inc. for a consideration of \$100,578

#### **2.2 Mineral Properties Update**

Following the COB, the Company commenced the process to divest all remaining interest in China, two mineral properties and a receivable, collectively the Retained Assets.

The following is a summary of exploration costs, net of recoveries of the two mineral properties located in China that are held by the Company

	March 31, 2017	Cumulative to March 31, 2017
	\$	\$
Gansu - Longnan	-	12,527,397
Hunan - Gold Bull Mountain	-	2,338,473
Total		14,865,870

Longnan Projects:

Minco China, a former subsidiary of the Company, holds nine exploration permits in trust for the Company in the Longnan region of south Gansu province in China. On April 8, 2016, the Company sold two exploration permits in the Yangshan and Xicheng east area to Longnan Kingstone Mining Limited for total RMB 800,000. Minco China received RMB 100,000 (\$19,365) as at December 31, 2016 and the remaining RMB 700,000 (\$140,137) was received in January 2017.

### **3. Results of Operations**

#### For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2017

Three months ended March 31,	2017	2016	2017-2016
	\$	\$	\$
Unrealized gain from investments at fair value	3,682,834	-	3,682,834
Operating expenses	(292,862)	(356,792)	63,930
Other income	(29,535)	(723,929)	694,394
Net income for the year	3,360,437	(1,080,721)	4,441,158

The Company recorded an unrealized gain from investments at fair value of \$3.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2017 (2016 - \$Nil)

The amount of unrealized gain (loss) from investments at fair value incurred in a reporting period depends on the performance of the investments that are held by the Company and will fluctuate from time to time and is difficult to predict. Readers are cautioned that there is no guarantee that similar gain will be earned in the future.

### 3.1 Operating Expenses

The following table is a summary of the Company's operating expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and a comparison to the same period in 2016

Three months ended March 31,	ref	2017	2016	Net changes (2017 – 2016)
		\$	\$	\$
Accounting and audit		16,116	19,572	(3,456)
Amortization		873	1,013	(140)
Consulting		17,537	4,537	13,000
Directors' fees		16,000	14,500	1,500
Exploration cost	а	-	90,998	(90,998)
Investor relations		9,039	10,427	(1,388)
Legal and regulatory	с	24,538	43,416	(18,878)
Office administration expenses		56,427	60,045	(3,618)
Property investigation		46,315	31,450	14,865
Salaries and benefit		33,161	34,312	(1,151)
Share-based compensation	b	63,135	42,861	20,274
Travel		9,721	3,661	6,060
		292,862	356,792	(63,930)

Significant changes are as follows:

(a). Exploration costs decreased by \$90,998 to \$Nil in 2017 Q1. The Company has started the process of divesting its mineral interest in China in late fiscal 2016. As a result, there was no exploration cost incurred in the current period.

(b). Share-based compensation expense increased by \$20,274. The Company granted 2,000,000 options during the current period.

(c). Legal and regulatory expenditures decreased as the Company voluntarily delisted from the NYSE Mkt in late January 2017.

### **3.2** Finance and other income (expense)

The following table is a summary of the Company's other income (expenses) for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and a comparison to the same period in 2016

Three months ended March 31,	2017	2016	2017-2016
	\$	\$	\$
Finance income	9,542	16,561	(7,019)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (ii)	(39,077)	(341,689)	302,612
Share of gain (loss) from equity investment in			
Minco Silver (i)	-	(389,616)	389,616
Dilution loss	-	(9,185)	9,185
Total other loss	(29,535)	(723,929)	694,394

(i) The Company accounted for its investment in Minco Silver with the equity method until November 11, 2016 when the Company commenced accounting for its investment in Minco Silver at fair value. Accordingly the Company recorded a \$389,616 share of loss from Minco Silver during the three months ended March 31, 2016 under the equity method accounting.

(ii) The Company held cash and cash equivalent in US dollar during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016. Appreciation/depreciation of US dollar against Canadian dollar resulted in foreign exchange gain (loss). The Company expects there will be foreign exchange gain (loss) in the future unless the Company ceases to have financial assets denominated in the US dollar.

# 4. Summary of Quarterly Results

Three-month	Net loss attributable to	Net loss	
period ended	shareholders	Basic	Diluted
03-31-2017(v)	3,360,437	0.07	0.06
12-31-2016 (iv)	8,356,962	0.16	0.16
09-30-2016	(214,168)	0.00	0.00
06-30-2016	154,995	0.00	0.00
03-31-2016 (iii)	(1,080,721)	(0.02)	(0.02)
12-31-2015 (ii)	1,835,084	0.04	(0.00)
09-30-2015(i)	16,057,984	0.32	0.32
06-30-2015	278,997	0.01	0.01

Variations in quarterly performance over the past eight quarters were generally attributed to changes resulting from the Company's investments. Other contributing factors included the amount of share-based compensation recognized in each period and incidental other gain and loss.

(i) Net income of \$16.0 million was earned during the period ended September 30, 2015. The Company recorded a \$15.1 million gain from the disposition of its Chinese subsidiaries.

(ii) The Company earned a net income of \$1.8 million for the period ended December 31, 2015. The Company recorded a \$2.2 million recovery of impairment previously charged.

(iii) The Company had a loss of \$1.08 million during the period ended March 31, 2016. The Company recorded a higher than average share of loss from Minco Silver.

(iv and v) The Company earned a net income of \$3.3 million and \$8.3 million for these periods which was mainly a result of recording significant unrealized gain from its investments at fair value. See discussion in the section 3.

# 5. Liquidity and Capital Resources

## 5.1 Cash Flows

Three months ended March 31	2017	2016
	\$	\$
Operating activities	(124,186)	(524,617)
Investing activities	-	150,000
Financing activities	-	2,600

The Company used less cash in the operating activities as the Company incurred less operating expense and used less resources to finance its working capital during three months ended March 31, 2017.

## 5.2 Capital Resources and Liquidity Risk

As at March 31, 2017, the Company's working capital was \$22,879,934 compared to \$19,950,841 working capital at 2016 year end. Working capital increased as the Company's investments at fair value had a \$3.68 million unrealized gain during the current period

The Company does not generate revenues and relies on equity financing for its working capital requirements to fund investing, and administrative activities. As at March 31, 2017, the Company believes there is sufficient working capital available to meet its current operational requirements.

## **5.3** Contractual Obligations

The Company's contractual obligations are related to rental expenses for an office in Canada.

There have been no material changes in the Company's contractual obligations since its recent year ended December 31, 2016.

### 6. Off -Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

# 7. Transactions with Related Parties

### Investments

Refer to the section 2.1 for description of the Company's relationship and transaction with its investee, El Olivar.

# Trust agreement with Minco China

When the Company disposed its Chinese subsidiaries on July 31, 2015, the Company ceased to have subsidiaries in China. As a result, the Company entered into a trust agreement with Minco China, a subsidiary of Minco Silver, to hold the interest of the Retained Assets (section 2.2) on behalf of the Company.

### Shared office expenses

Minco Silver, Minco Base Metals Corporation, a company with which the Company's CEO has significant influence over, and Minco Gold share offices and certain operating expenses in Vancouver.

### Due from related parties

As at March 31, 2017, the Company had the following amounts due from related parties:

- \$348,291 due from Minco Silver which is a combined result of the following:
  - Minco China, a subsidiary of Minco Silver, held \$679,045 in trust and on behalf of the Company from the partial settlement of the Retained Assets in fiscal 2016.
  - A net payable of \$330,754 to Minco Silver which was a combined result of the \$370,531 expenses Minco Silver paid on behalf of Minco Gold for the Retained Assets in fiscal 2016 net of the administrative and shared expense paid by Minco Gold on behalf of Minco Silver of \$39,777 during the three months ended March 31, 2017.
- 18,401 due from MBM, in relation to shared office expenses

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing and payable on demand.

### Key management compensation

Key management includes the Company's directors and senior management. This compensation is included in exploration costs and administrative expenses.

For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the following compensation was incurred and accrued with key management:

	Three months ended March 31,		
	<b>2016</b> \$	<b>2015</b> \$	
Cash remuneration	71,162	69,896	
Share-based compensation	54,656	37,228	
Total	128,818	107,124	

The above transactions were conducted in the normal course of business.

### 8. Critical Accounting Judgement and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to use judgment in applying its accounting policies and estimates and assumptions about the future. Estimates and other judgments are continuously evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, including expectations about future events that are believed to be reasonable in the circumstances. The following discusses the most significant accounting judgments and estimates that the Company has made in the preparation of the financial statements:

#### Significant Influence of Minco Silver

Management has assessed the level of influence that the Company has on Minco Silver and determined that it has significant influence even though its shareholding has been below 20% since April 22, 2014. This is because of the representation on Minco Silver's board, common CEO and other shared management.

## The status of an investment entity

Management considered all the available facts and concluded that the Company has met all the three criteria set forth in IFRS 10.27 and became an investment entity as defined in IFRS 10:

- obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with investment management services;
- commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income, or both; and
- measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

In addition, management considers the Company has all of the typical characteristics of an investment entity set forth in IFRS 10.28:

- it has more than one investment;
- it has more than one investor ;
- it has investors that are not related parties of the entity; and
- it has ownership interests in the form of equity.

### Fair value of investments measured at FVTPL

The Company's investments are recorded at fair value. Management uses their judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are not always supported by quantifiable market prices or rates. Judgment is required in order to determine the appropriate valuation methodology under this standard and subsequently in determining the inputs into the valuation model used. These judgments include assessing the future earnings potential of investee companies, appropriate earnings multiples to apply, adjustments to comparable multiples, liquidity and net assets. In making estimates and judgments, management relies on external information and observable conditions where possible, supplemented by internal analysis as required. These estimates have been applied in a manner consistently and there are no known trends, commitments, events or uncertainties that the Company believes will materially affect the methodology or assumptions utilized in making these estimates in these Financial Statements. Accordingly, actual values realized in future market transactions may differ from the estimates presented in these Financial Statements and the differences may be material. The use

of different market assumptions and/or valuation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair values of various assets and liabilities.

The fair values of financial instruments with quoted bid and ask prices are based on the price within the bidask spread that are most representative of fair value and may include closing prices in exchange markets. The fair value of the other financial instruments is determined using the valuation techniques considered appropriate.

# 9. Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Applied

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, addresses classification and measurement of financial assets. It replaces the multiple category and measurement models in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for debt instruments with a new mixed measurement model having only two categories: amortized cost and fair value through profit or loss. Requirements for financial liabilities are largely carried forward from the existing requirements in IAS 39 except that fair value changes due to credit risk for liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss are generally recorded in other comprehensive income. The effective date of this new standard will be for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of IFRS 9 on our financial statements and expect to adopt the new standard when it comes to effective.

IFRS 16, Leases, replaces the previous leases standard IAS 17, Leases, and Related Interpretations, and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (lessee) and the supplier (lessor). Effective January 1, 2019, an entity can choose to apply IFRS 16, but only if it also applies IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. We do not expect there are significant impacts of the adoption of IFRS 16.

# **10.** Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities have been classified into categories that determine their basis of measurement and, for items measured at fair value, whether changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of income or comprehensive income. Those categories are: loans and receivables, other financial liabilities and financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The following table summarizes the carrying value of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

	March 31, 2017 \$	December 31, 2016 \$
Fair value through profit and loss:		
Investments at fair value, current and non-current	16,291,714	12,307,860
Loans and receivables:		
Cash	4,411,856	4,575,119
Short-term investment	2,337,825	3,352,062
Receivables	22,034	169,380
Due from related parties	366,692	223,672
Other Financial Liabilities		
Accounts payables	94,625	211,424

# Fair value measurement

Financial assets and liabilities that are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value can be classified in a hierarchy that is based on the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The levels in the hierarchy are:

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); and

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

As at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, financial instruments that are not measured at fair value on the balance sheet are represented by cash, short-term investments, receivable, due from/ to related parties, and account payable and accrued liabilities. The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying value due to their short-term nature.

As at March 31, 2017, the Company's financial assets measured at fair values through profit or loss are classified as follows:

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3
	\$	\$	\$
Investments at fair value, current	15,791,714	500,000 (ii)	-
Investments at fair value, non-current	-	-	533,212 (i)

(i) The measurement of the fair value of investment in EI Olivar Imperial SAC was classified as level 3 as the fair value was estimated based on the latest market transaction value of this investment.

(ii) The fair value of certain share purchase warrant has been calculated by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model

### Financial risk factors

The Company examines the various financial risks to which it is exposed and assesses the impact and likelihood of occurrence. These risks may include credit risk, foreign exchange risk, currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. Management reviews these risks monthly and when material, they are reviewed and monitored by the Board of Directors.

# Credit risk

Counterparty credit risk is the risk that the financial benefits of contracts with a specific counterparty will be lost if the counterparty defaults on its obligations under the contract. This includes any cash amounts owed to the Company by these counterparties, less any amounts owed to the counterparty by the Company where a legal right of set-off exists and includes the fair value contracts with individual counterparties which are recorded in the financial statements. The Company considers the following financial assets to be exposed to credit risk:

- Cash and cash equivalents of \$4,411,856– To manage credit and liquidity risk the Company places its cash with major financial institutions in two major financial institutions in Canada (subject to deposit insurance up to \$100,000).
- Short-term investment of 2,337,825 The Company places its short-term investment with a major financial institution in Canada.
- Investments at fair value the Company maintained certain amount of its investments at fair value in a segregated account of a major Canadian brokerage firm.

### Foreign exchange risk

The Company's functional currency is the Canadian dollar in Canada. The foreign currency risk is related to the Company's cash and cash equivalent, marketable securities and investments that may be denominated in US dollar. As at March 31, 2017, the Company had the following cash, cash equivalent, investments denominated in US dollar:

- Investment of \$533,212 (US\$400,000);
- Cash and cash equivalent of approximately \$4.4 million (US\$ 3.3 million).

A 10% change in the currency exchange rate (US\$ to C\$) will affect the Company's net income (loss) in a given period by approximately \$0.44 million. The Company does not have currency hedge for its foreign exchange exposure.

## Interest rate risk

Financial instruments that expose the Company to interest rate risk are cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments.

The Company holds short-term investments such as guaranteed investment certificates at fixed interest rates. As a result, the Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.

A comprehensive discussion of risk factors is included in the Company's annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2016, dated March 31, 2017, available on SEDAR at <u>www.sedar.com</u>.

# Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of an investment measured at FVTPL will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from foreign currency risk or interest rate risk). The Company is subject to price risk through its public equity investments.

The Company's investments in private company are also subject to price risk as they are impacted by many general and specific market variables.

A 10% increase/decrease in the value of all investments at fair value would result in an approximately \$1.68 million impact to the Company's net income.

# 11. Cautionary Statement on Forward-Looking Information

Management has established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that information disclosed in this MD&A and the related financial statements was properly recorded, processed, summarized and reported to the Company's Board and Audit Committee.

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting. Any system of internal control over financial reporting, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

The control framework used to design the Company's internal control over financial reporting is the Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO").

Since the recent year ended December 31, 2016, there were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

# 13. Cautionary Statement on Forward-Looking Information

Except for statements of historical fact, this MD&A contains certain "forward looking information" and "forward looking statements" within the meaning of applicable securities laws, which reflect management's current expectations, assumptions, and beliefs of the Company as of the date of such information or statements. Generally, forward looking statements and information can be identified by the use of forward looking terminology such as "plans", "expects", "is expected", "budget", "scheduled", "estimates", "forecasts", "intends", "anticipates", "believes" or variations of such words and phrases or statements that certain actions, events or results "may", "could", "would", "might" or "will be taken", "occur" or "be achieved" or the negative connotation thereof.

All such forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by us in light of our experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors we believe are appropriate in the circumstances. These statements are, however, subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties and other factors. As a result, actual results, performance, or achievements could differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, these forward-looking statements and, accordingly, no assurance can be given that any of the events anticipated by the forward-looking statements will transpire or occur, or if any of them do so, what benefits will be derived therefrom. These risks, uncertainties and other factors include, among others: but are not limited to, statements with respect to: the Company's future growth, results of operations, performance and business prospects, opportunities, the Company's investment strategy, investment process, and competitive advantage, growth expectation and opportunities, the availability of future acquisition opportunities and use of the proceeds from financing.

Although the Company has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that statements containing forward looking information will prove to be accurate as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on statements containing forward looking information. All the forward-looking information and statements contained in this document are expressly qualified, in their entirety, by this cautionary statement. The various risks to which we are exposed are described in additional detail under the section entitled "*Item 3: Key Information – D. Risk Factors*" in the Company's annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2016 that is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. The forward-looking information and statements are made as of the date of this document, and we assume no obligation to update or revise them except as required pursuant to applicable securities laws.